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SECRETARY OF LABOR, ClVIL PENALTY PRCCEEDI NG
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PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 44-00246-03502A- A-59
V.
J WL Construction Co., Inc.,
JOSEPH B. NECESSARY, Pocahontas No. 1 M ne
RESPONDENT
DECI SI ON

Appearances: Edward H Fitch, Esg., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Departnment of Labor, Arlington, Virginia,
for Petitioner;

WlliamB. Talty, Esq., Tazwell, Virginia, for
Respondent .

Bef or e: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Case

This is a civil penalty proceedi ng brought by the petitioner
agai nst the respondent pursuant to 0110(c) of the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S. C. 00820(c), charging the
respondent an all eged "knowi ng" violation of mandatory safety
standard 30 CF.R 0O77.200. At the time of the alleged violation,
t he respondent was enployed by the J W& L Construction Conpany,
an i ndependent contractor doing some repair work on a mne refuse
storage bin | ocated at a m ne owned and operated by Island Creek
Coal Conpany. Respondent was the site foreman in charge of the
repair work. Followi ng a structural collapse of the structure,
resulting in the death of three mners, and follow ng an
i nvestigation by MSHA, the contractor, mine operator, and the
naned respondent in this case were charged with viol ations.

On Novenber 9, 1982, a section 104(d)(1) citation, No.
2043640, was issued to both the mne operator and the
i ndependent contractor. Both were charged with a violation
of 30 CF.R [77.200, and the condition or practice cited
i s described as follows:
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The m ne refuse storage bin and supporting
structure for the aerial trammay system was
not maintained in good repair to prevent
accidents and injuries. Repair and nmai nt enance
wor k perfornmed by an independent contractor
J W& L Conpany, Inc., during miners' vacation
(June 20 - July 11, 1982) resulted in the
facility being left structurally unsound
because two of the six bin support col umms
(stub columms) were not positioned during
reinstallation to align with the main support
colums. A resultant structural collapse of the
facility occurred on August 24, 1982, fatally
injuring three mners. Janes D. Lafon and
Joe Necessary were the responsible officials
for J W& L Conpany, Inc., during the repair
wor k. Joe Shortt (plant foreman) and M ke Col e
(Assi stant mmi ntenance foreman) were the
responsi ble officials for the Virginia Pocahont as
Preparation Plant facilities during the
repair work. This citation is issued jointly
to both the production operator (Citation No.
2043639 dated 11-9082) and the independent
contractor (Citation No. 2043640 dated
11-9-82) for the violation described above.

On or about January 16, 1984, pursuant to 30 C.F.R Part
100, MBHA's Ofice of Assessnents served the respondent with a
proposed civil penalty assessnment of $1,000 for the foregoing
vi ol ati on under section 110(c) of the Act. Respondent was
charged with know ngly authorizing, ordering, or carrying
out the independent contractor's violation of 30 C F.R 0O77.200,
as cited in the aforenentioned citation. He contested the
citation, and MSHA filed the instant proposal for assessnent
of civil penalty against him

According to the information furni shed by MSHA' s counse
during the hearing in this case, Island Creek Coal Conpany,
the operator of the Pocahontas Mne, has paid a civil penalty
assessnent in the anpbunt of $240, in satisfaction of the
citation (Tr. 4). Counsel also advised that in a proceedi ng
bef ore Comm ssion Judge Gary Melick, Docket VA 83-47, the Judge
on or about January 13, 1984, approved a settlement calling
for the contractor to pay a civil penalty assessnent of
$9,000 in satisfaction of the citation (Tr. 5, 25).

| ssues

VWet her respondent Joseph B. Necessary, acting as an agent
of the contractor mne operator, know ngly authorized, ordered, or
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carried out the aforesaid violation under section 110(c) of the
Act, and, if so, the appropriate civil penalty which should be
assessed agai nst himindividually pursuant to section 110(a) of
the Act.

Addi tional issues raised by the parties are identified and
di scussed in the course of these deci sions.

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C.
0801 et seq

2. Commission Rules, 20 C.F.R [2700.1 et seq.

3. Sections 110(a) and 110(c) of the Act. Section 110(a)
provi des for assessment of civil penalties against mne operators
for violations of any mandatory safety or health standards,
and section 110(c) provides as foll ows:

VWhenever a corporate operator violates a nmandatory
health or safety standard or know ngly viol ates or
fails or refuses to conply with any order issued
under this Act or any order incorporated in a fina
deci sion issued under this Act, except an order

i ncorporated in a decision issued under subsection
(a) or section 105(c), any director, officer, or
agent of such corporati on who know ngly authori zed,
ordered, or carried out such violation, failure, or
refusal shall be subject to the same civil penalties,
fines, and inprisonnent that may be inposed upon a
person under subsections (a) and (d) (enphasis added).

30 CF.R [0O77.200, provides as follows:

Al'l mne structures, enclosures, or other facilitires
(i ncluding custom coal preparation) shall be maintained
in good repair to prevent accidents and injuries

to enpl oyees.

An "agent is defined in Section 3(e) of the Act (30 U.S.C. O
802(e)) to nmean "any person charged with responsibility for the
operation of all or part of a coal mne or other mne or the
supervision of the miners in a coal mne or other mne."

Sti pul ations

The parties stipulated as to jurisdiction, and the fact that
t he respondent was enpl oyed by the independent contractor
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in question as a foreman during work performed by the contractor

at the mine site in question in June and July 1982. They al so
agreed that the refuse bin structure in question collapsed on

or about August 24, 1982, and that followi ng an MSHA i nvesti gation,
the respondent was cited for the violation which is the subject

of this case (Tr. 6-7).

The parties stipulated as to the authenticity of MSHA' s
official report of investigation, exhibit P-1, and they agreed
that the citation issued by MSHA I nspector Jerry Wley in this
case was the result of the investigation conducted by MSHA
(Tr. 7). MBHA's counsel pointed out that the report (exhibit
P-1), was issued on August 24, 1982, but that a final report was
not released until March 2, 1983, after the citation issued.
Counsel explained that the August 24, 1982, "prelimnary report,"”
i ncluding the date contained therein, forned the basis for
the i ssuance of the citation by M. WIley. Counsel also
indicated that M. WIey had no i ndependent know edge of the
facts leading to the coll apse, other than the report of
i nvestigation, and the parties agreed not to call himas a
witness in this proceeding since the author of the report,

MSHA | nspector Dal e Cavenaugh, would testify (Tr. 9-10).

Petitioner's Testi nony and Evi dence

Ernest M Cole, Yard Foreman, |sland Creek Coal Conpany,
testified that at the tine of the accident he was enpl oyed at
the m ne as the Assistant CQutside Mintenance Foreman. During
the m ners' vacation period in 1982, he was responsible for
mai nt enance and repair work at the preparation plant, and he
confirmed that he occasionally observed the work being perforned
on the bin structure in question. He confirned that he was
aware of the fact that the top of the bin had been renoved
for repairs, and that during the renoval process the crane
used to lift it off collapsed. He al so was aware of the
fact that M. Necessary was the site foreman for the J W& L
conpany performng the work on the bin (Tr. 33-37).

M. Cole stated that he was concerned that the repair work
woul d not be conpleted by the contractor by the tine mners
vacation ended, and he indicated that once the bin was renoved
and on the ground, work was not progressing during the second
week (Tr. 37). M. Cole confirmed that the bin stub col ums
were welded to the structure while it was on the ground, and he
i ndi cated that he was aware of no engineers fromthe contractor
or Island Creek review ng the work being performed by the
contractor (Tr. 38).

M. Cole stated that once the bin was replaced, he went to
the top to nake sure that the belt was operable so that
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the preparation plant could operate. He did not believe that he
had any responsibility to inspect the structural integrity of

the work performed by the contractor, and his concern was

that the belt at the top of the bin was operational. He confirnmed
that prior to the repair work, the bin had a large hole in

it which caused sone spillage of waste materials (Tr. 41).

M. Cole identified exhibit P-1 as a copy of MSHA' s acci dent
i nvestigation report, and he confirmed that he is the same M ke
Cole referred to in the report. He descri bed what he saw when
the structure collapsed (Tr. 42-44). He confirmed that any
know edge he had that any of the bin support colums were
m sal i gned cane fromhis reading of MSHA's report (Tr. 45), and
he had no prior personal know edge that the support col ums
were m saligned (Tr. 46).

On cross-exam nation, M. Cole described the hole in the
bin, and he confirned that spillage was cleaned up with an end
| oader. He also confirmed that there was a concrete pad at the
base of the bin structure, and that it was not nuddy, but it
woul d be wet on occasi ons when the plant was washed down (Tr.
56). He stated that he was not aware of the condition of the
bottom hal f of the bin structure prior to the repair work
(Tr. 56-57).

M. Cole indicated that the bin was used to store refuse
such as rock and sl ate which had been renoved fromthe coal
He expl ai ned the procedures used to process the coal through
the preparation plant and into the bin (Tr. 58-60). He
al so explained that "filter cake," or the finer particles from
the refuse, finds itself into the bin, and it is either wet or
dry (Tr. 62). He stated that he is not aware of any "proper
procedure" for freeing up such material which may "hang in" the
bin, and he confirned that the only way he is aware of for
freeing the material is to "beat on" the bin (Tr. 63). When this
is done, the material falls through the bottom of the "cone
shaped” end of the bin onto a feeder and into a hopper (Tr. 64).
He confirmed that "beating on" the bin has been a | ong standing
met hod for freeing such material fromthe bin (Tr. 64-65).

Rufus W Young, welder, J W& L Construction Conpany,
testified that he and M. Larry Stewart worked on the
bin which is the subject of this case. He described the work
performed in renoving the top of the bin structure, and he
i ndi cated that each of the six stub colums were cut through with
a welding torch in order to renove the top of the bin. He
i ndicated that the top of the bin which was renoved was cut
of f above the support colums at the top of the ring which
is at the bottom cone portion of the bin. He stated that
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the main col ums supporting the structure fromthe ground

up to the location where the bin was cut off were |arge colums
whi ch did not continue up to support the top of the structure.
The upper support columms were snaller four or five inch
colums different fromthe bottomones (Tr. 73).

M. Young stated that M. Necessary was supervising the work
he and M. Stewart were performng. He also confirmed that this
was the first tine he had ever taken a top off a bin structure
and replaced it after repairs, and he indicated that in his past
experience the entire bin structure was sinply replaced. The job
for Island Creek was the first tine he had ever taken off the
top of a bin above the funnel. He confirned that the new portion
of the bin which he worked on had been prefabricated in two pieces,
and that he and M. Stewart sinply wel ded themtogether while
it was on the ground. They al so added the stub col ums which
had been cut off the old bin. M. Young was not present
when the old bin was lifted off and |lowered to the ground (Tr.
74-76).

M. Young expl ai ned how the six stub colums were welded to
the bin structure while it was on the ground, and he indicated that
measur enents and "pl unbi ng" were done to insure that they were
on straight. This work was finished late in the second week of
t he vacation period. Once the colums were on, the crane lifted
the bin in place on top of the structure, and once one of
the colums was aligned, he and M. Stewart began the wel di ng
process frominside the bin, working their way around. He
descri bed the process as follows (Tr. 79-82):

Q When you put that bin in place with six colums, you
assuned that the other five were in |ine because this
one was in |line?

A. Yes, | would say that's what we done because there
was no way of setting it and telling because it wasn't
a perfect circle. W had to draw it in in places.

In sone places it would stick out, and in sonme pl aces
it would be on the inside.

Q It did not quite fit; did it?

A. No, not perfect. | have never put anything together
like that that did [sic].

Q | amsorry, | didn't get your |ast answer.
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JUDGE KQUTRAS: He said he has never known one to fit
in perfect. He tried to in perfect.e tried to align
it the best he could. Is that what you said?

A. Yes, sir.

Q How was the new bin marked for the colums to be put
on? This is when it was down on the ground.

A. W just got the center of one columm and started
with it and nmarked the rest of them as we went around,
mark the centers.

Q Was the mark put on the bin for the center of the
col um or the edge of the col um?

A Wll, we got the center of the colum and then we
nmeasured the thickness of the beam and marked the
edges so we could see. If it had been the center

you woul dn't have able to put it on there right, so
we marked it for the edges of the beans.

Q When you set the new bin on top of the old col ums,
you only lined up one col um?

A Wll, that's all we could line up at the tinme.

Q After it was put in place, lined up on that one
colum, did the crane disconnect fromthe bin and you
started your wel ding process?

A. No, sir. We left the crane hooked to it until we
worked it around and got it all the way around.

Q The crane was in place holding the bin while you did
t he wel di ng around the structure?

A. On the inside.

Q On the inside?

A. Yes, sir.

Q So you got inside the bin and you welded a circle
around the bin where it joined with the cone?
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A

Q

Yes, sir.

At that point you had not done anything wth welding

the colums; right?

A

A

c » 0 » O » O » O > O » O P> O P> O

No, sir.

So the inside was fully beaded?

Yes, sir.

Did the crane go away then after you finished that?
To the best of nmy recollection it did.

Is this one of the Iong days that you worked?
That we wel ded?

Yes.

Yes, sir.

Putting the bin in place.

Yes, sir.

Is that the day you worked about 20 hours?
Probabl y so.

You wel ded the whol e inside?

Yes.

Did you start wel ding the outside that day?
No, sir.

You went hone when you finished on the inside?

Yes, sir, we went home when we got the inside nade

up and the belt put back on top and they started
runni ng rock through. They started it up. W did
the work on the outside while they was running.

Q So the actual welding of the stub columms took
pl ace- -

A. Wiile they was running rock in the bin.

Q After mners' vacation?

A

Yes.
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M. Young expl ai ned the work which was performed on the outside

of the bin once the inside work was done, and his testinony is as
follows (Tr. 83).

Q You did another weld on the outside of the bin al
t he way around?

A. Yes.

Q How did you match up the colums, the stub col ums?

A. They were matched when they cone around, all except
one was a couple inches off. One of the two bins weren't
the sane size. Wien we drawed it around it was a slight
bit larger, so it throwed one of the colums off a couple
of inches, to the best of ny remenbrance.

Q Didyou bring that to M. Necessary's attention?

A. Yes, sir, later in that week we did.

Q Did you do the welding of that columm before he knew
about it?

A | don't recall. | amnot sure

M. Young was shown a copy of a signed statenent he gave to

MSHA' s special investigator on July 9, 1984, and he acknow edged

t hat

it is his statenent (Tr. 84; exhibit P-2). A portion of

the statenent was read into the record, as follows below, and M.
Young acknow edged that it was true (Tr. 85-86):

i ne

We started welding on the top part of the bin and when
we got all the way around to the last columm, |, the
other welder, Stewart and G|l espie and the foreman
Joe Necessary noticed the top H beamwas off center
about two inches.

M. Young expl ained that he noticed the colums were out of
the week after the vacation period ended, and he expl ai ned

further as follows (Tr. 86-89):

Q What | amtrying to understand is when did you first
notice that they were out of line? The week after the
vacation was over?

A. Wiile we was working on the outsides of the bin, we
noti ced a bl udge inside the bin.
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Q In other words, by the tinme the mners' vacation
was over this job had not been conpleted yet; is that
right? You were still working onit, the mners were
back and they were running material up this belt?

A. Yes, they were running material up the belt while we
wer e wor ki ng.

Q You were working doing what around the outside of it?
A. Wl di ng around the outside.
Q Welding what?

A. Wlding the top part of the beamto the support ring
and the col um.

Q What was holding this bin up while they was dunpi ng?
MR FITCH Interweld.

THE WTNESS: W nade a conplete weld on the inside all
the way around. They started up, and we went on the
outside and started to work on the outside of the bin.
BY JUDGE KOUTRAS:

Q It was when you were doing this work on the outside
to finish this job is when you saw that one of the

H beans- -

A. Yes, sir, that's when we were out there. That's the
only tinme we were in a position to see it.

Q That is the first tinme you noticed it?
A. Yes, sir.

Q How does it cone to pass that M. Stewart and M.
Gllespie and M. Necessary were all there and noticed it too?

A. W were just working there and we tal ked about it,
we noticed it--

Q About two inches?
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Q One col um?

A. To the best of ny nenory, one columm about two
i nches.

Q Then the statenent goes on to say: "W discussed the
condition with Necessary and he told us to put a plate

to help support the bin. W put the plate on after they
had already started putting rock in the bin. Necessary

was the only one | saw'--Wat is that next word?

MR FI TCH I nspect.
BY JUDCE KOUTRAS

Q "Inspect the bin after the work was conpleted." So
after you noticed that it was two inches off, this one
columm, what is this business about a plate?

Q Well, we would have had to put a plate in anyway
because where we burnt we had to straighten it up
There woul d have been a gap between the two beans.
W& woul d have had to put the plate in there anyway.

Q What you said in this statenent to the man who took
it fromyou on July 9th, is as you renmenber it back when
you finished the job; is that correct?

A Yes.

M. Young expl ai ned how he wel ded hal f-inch plates under the
col um which was two inches off center, and he referred to Draw ng
4, which appears at page 12 of MSHA's accident report to explain
how the plates were welded to the colum. He also testified as to
certain "scrapes" which appear on the pictures shown on page 13 of
the report, as well as the seans and bolt hol es whi ch appear
in the photographs (Tr. 98-100). M. Young could not recall whether
pl ates were welded on all six support colums, "or just the ones
that had the gap in it where we couldn't weld it" (Tr. 102).
However, he conceded that "it was possible" that nore than
one plate

M. Young stated that to the best of his recollection only
one of the stub colums was off two inches, and since it was
al ready wel ded onto the bin, there was nothing that could have
been done to nove it over (Tr. 109). The columm was left in
that position when the plates were welded on (Tr. 117). The
plates sinmply filled the gap under the colum, and had
nothing to do with it being two i nches off center (Tr. 118).
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M. Young stated that during the course of his welding work on
the bin structure, he did not do any bolting work, and he reiterated
that at no tinme were any of the stub colums off center by eight
inches (Tr. 126). He conceded that when the repair work was
conpl eted, the one colum was still two inches off center (Tr. 126).

On cross-exam nation, M. Young stated that at no tine
during his work on the bin structure was he ever rushed or
pushed to work faster, and he believed he had adequate tine
to do the work as he believed he should do it (Tr. 128).

He stated that during the tine he was perform ng work on the
structure, sone of the concrete footers at the base of the
structure were under water. He also indicated that he did
not notice whether all of the "X' cross or lateral support
beans at the base of the structure were in place (Tr. 129).

Larry S. Stewart, testified that he is enployed by JW& L
Construction Conpany as a welder, and he confirmed that he
participated in the repairs nmade to the bin in question in
this case. He confirmed that he welded the old stubs which
had been taken off the old bin to the new bin while it was
on the ground. He stated that he and M. Young neasured the
ol d beans while the bin was on the ground, and that M.
Necessary was present and observed how t hese nmeasurenents
were nmade. He described how this was done and confirned
that once the colums were wel ded to the new bin, he hel ped
install it to the structure and helped "line it up"

(Tr. 131-133). He described what he did as follows (Tr. 135-145):

A Wll, we was--a couple of us Iike was on one side and
maybe two or three on the other side and we sort of tried
to get themall lined as we set it down. Then we started

at that one and got it real close and as best, you know,
in line and then worked our way around, drawed the

bin in, because part of it would be bulged out a little
bit because where you welded it it would give a little.

Q It was not a precise fit when you put it back?

A. No.

Q As you welded it it bul ged around?

A. What | was tal king about is when they put the stub
colums on the ground it m ght have drawed in a little

bit. That is the reason we had to pull it on in to nake
it fit.
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*

Q When you say "draw it in,
mean by draw it in.

can you explain what you

A. W had had a ring, you know the ring, part of it was
sticking over just a little bit so we had to nake sonet hi ng
to put on it and then tack it and draw it in so it would
fit flush and worked our way around.

Q So the bin was too big, but not by nuch or what? |
amtrying to understand what you are trying to tell nme
and | amnot quite clear. It wasn't a sinple easy
bead around. You had to make it fit?

A. Yes, had to sort of--you had to draw it in.
Q What kind of equipnment did you use to draw it in?

A. W had sone big 12-inch Cclanmps. You know, you
could draw the netal down. We cut part of it off

and nade a foot and put it at the bottom and we

tied to the part that was like this, out, and then
drawed it, you know, just kept screwing. W had like
three or four drawing it into a fit and then we woul d
tack it, then we would go back and wel d.

Q When you finished that process, how many of the
out si de stub col ums had been wel ded to the other
col ums; do you know?

A. | know one had for sure.

Q How many did you actually wel d?

A | can't renenber. Maybe two or three. | don't
renmenber if | welded all of them

Q Do you renenber com ng across a stub columm that was
not lined up with the columm above it?

A. Yes, that was two or three days after we had done
put it up. They was running refuse in the bin.

Q Tell me what happened that day; what did you see?
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A It wasn't directly over top of it. | thought it
was- - by | ooki ng, you know, | thought it was like a
coupl e inches off.

Q Did you talk to anybody about that?
A | didn't, no.
Q Wi did?

A. Mstly | worked with Rufus. He usually talked to Joe
and then he would tell us everything to do.

Q That was Joe Necessary and Rufus Young?
A. Right.

Q M. Necessary would tell you what to do--or he would
tell--

A. M. Young would tell us, you know, what we would be
doi ng, you know.

Q Did you do the welding for the colum that you say
did not line up?

A. | don't renenber. | can't renenber.
Q You do not renmenber putting a plate in and--

A. Yes, | renmenber we put plates in. W put the plates
in. I amnot for sure--we was in a basket when we was
putting them back.

* * * *

Q | have told you and you have heard in the testinony
today the investigation indicated with respect to
Drawi ng Nunber 3 that Columms Nunber 4 and 5 were
offset 8 1/2 and 8 inches, respectively, and that

is adrawing to give a representation of how the stub

columm did not align directly with the main col um.

A. They didn't line up, but to the best of ny
know edge, | don't think it was off no eight
i nches. Wiich when they cane and talked to

me a year ago, the first time, they only said one
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colum. Now you all say there was two. | told
themthen that | thought it was just off like a
couple inches. | didn't think this drawi ng was
right.

Q Well does that drawing | ook Iike the work you di d?
A. Yes, we put plates in here. W did put plates.

Q And you beaded those plates to the [ ower colum and
you beaded themto the stub columm and you beaded t hem
to the bin?

A. W welded all the way around this ring, see. This is
a separate one. There were two going to the top of that.
See, because when | cut it |oose, there was one com ng
up that stopped here, and there was an old plate in
there to start with, then that stub colum set on it.
See, this ring, it wasn't one solid nmade ring. It came
on both sides of this main support beam Then there was
a plate. I know some of themwas over top of it.

Q The stub colum was welded to the plate?

A. Wl ded to the plate and that is the way we wel ded

t hem back. The reason we had--sonme of themhad |ike a

t hi cker gap--sonme of the beanms was nore cut out when

it was tooken down--Well, | cut nost of them out

and then sonme of them | went back and cut agai n because
i ke one of them cone |oose. That is the reason why we
had a couple plates in sone of them

* * * *

Q Is that diagram and the previous diagram which is
Page 11, Drawi ng Nunmber 3 that shows the offset and

in Drawi ng Nunber 2 on Page 10 which shows how it shoul d
have been--Do you recall welding those two stub col umms,
Colum 4 and Columm 5, at an offset w thout having the
beam directly centered on the stub col um?

A. | can renmenber welding on them yes. | know of one
being off, but I don't think it was off no eight inches.
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Q You never neasured it; did you?

A. No, | didn't neasure but | could alnost tell by
looking it wasn't no eight inches. | would call it
about two inches or two and a hal f. Eight inches would
be that (indicating).

Q Do you recall that that occurred on one or two
col ums?

A. | just recall it on just one, to the best of ny
know edge.

Q You indicated that you and M. Young were the people
that did the welding on the outside and you were hangi ng
in a basket doing this work; right?

A. Yes, part of it you could get out and wal k. W had a
scaffold built you know, on the outside. Part of it we

got on the platformand wel ded and part of it we got in
t he basket and worked around.

Q M. Stewart, are you aware of whether or not M.
Necessary saw that columm that you maintain was m saligned?

A. He cane out while we was working on it, you know,
and was talking to us and telling us what to do--Ilike

| say, nostly he talked to Rufus, like, you know, tell
himwhat to do. But | amalnost sure that he saw it off.
Q Did he get in the basket? Was he on the scaffol d?

A. You could come up the bin, you could clinb down, you
could go wal k around it. You know, you could go around it.

Q On the scaffol d?
A Yes.

Q You saw himin the presence of that one col um t hat
you recal |l ?

A | believe, | can't really swear to it, you know,
that positively that | know he saw it.
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Q Did you receive any instructions fromM. Young or M.
Necessary as to how to weld the columm that you recal
was not aligned?

A. W were told, you know, to put our plates in there
to bridge that gap, which like |I told the guy when he
canme and talked to ne that you would have had to fil
that gap and you woul d have had to put a plate in there.

On cross-exam nation, M. Stewart stated that the reason the
new bin was "slightly off" when it was replaced was that the entire
bin and cone were not replaced. He indicated that the cone was
"eat up,"” and he believed it should have been repl aced. He descri bed
how the old bin top was cut off the structure, and he indicated that
the newly repaired portion of the bin was welded to the cone on the
inside. He also indicated that the old bin cone ring had been
"riveted on" and "stiched on," and that the rivets are simlar to
bolts spaced a foot apart. He also indicated that the ring was
not a solid weld where it fit to the cone, and that the rivets
make holes in the side of the bin (Tr. 145-150).

M. Stewart stated that he did not feel "rushed" during the
time he worked on the bin, and he confirnmed that sonme of the structure
concrete footers were under water (Tr. 155). He al so indicated that
the structure had X-braces and |l ateral supports, and he could not recal
whet her any of themwere mssing (Tr. 156). He was not present when
the structure collapsed (Tr. 157).

In response to questions fromthe bench, M. Stewart
testified as follows (Tr. 158-165):

Q When you wel ded the new bin onto the pressure ring,
the idea is to get the stub columm directly over the
existing I-beamthat is under it; right, so that one
wi Il support the other; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q To the best of your know edge, did you achieve that
objective, did you get all that lined up to where you
t hought it should be |ined up?

A. No, we didn't--there was one like I--

Q The one that was two inches off?

A | think it was about two.
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* * * *

Q How many of the stub columms had you wel ded?
understand you put the first one in, but how many
had you wel ded after you canme back after the Sunday
and they were operating and they were pouring
material into that bin; do you recall?

A At least four. Well, | know positively we wel ded one
on Sunday, the one we started from

Q Did you ever performany welding work fromthe
scaffold while they were pouring material into that bin?

A. Yes.
Q Did that concern you at all?
A It was no problemto ne.

Q | see this scenerio, you and sone of your fell ow

wor ki ng wel ders up there on the scaffolding and only
one colum is in place and you are in the process of
wel ding the rest of themand they are pouring

all this material in the bin; weren't you concerned

that the outside support columms, stub columms, were
not in place yet?

A. After we wel ded up on the inside, they was pretty

well in line then. They was over the top of the other
one and the bin was set in the tank. Well, | say the

tank, it was on the ring real--setting on it good and
| didn"t think it was going to cone off.

Q Now, the theory of the Governnent's case here is
after you fellows conpleted your job, there were two
colums that were off eight inches and within a week
or two after you finished--

MR, FI TCH Five weeks.
BY JUDGE KQOUTRAS
Q--five weeks after you finished sonething happened to

cause this thing to collapse. My curiosity is aroused as
toif it took five weeks for it to collapse after all the stub
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colums were in place, why did it not collapse when only
one was in place and you fellows were working on it and
they were pouring material into it? Do you have any

expl anation for that or any opinion or anything?

A Well, that's what | thought, it |ooks like--wth
those columms we didn't even have welded, it |ooks
like it would give then. The way | feel about it,

| think they got it too full and all that weight cone

down. | believe that cone cone | oose fromthe bottomit
tore loose fromthat ring and it shoved out. |
t hought about it before, you know, like if that cone

gi ve out because, see, they didn't replace that cone.

It was eat up and you had all that weight com ng down in
that thing. | either feel that one of them bottom main
support beans either gave down then it peeled off, it
woul d have to peel off, or either that cone cone out
fromunder the bottom

* * * *

A. | believe the bottomgave down and it turned over. |

t hought that they should have replaced that bottom part.

The coal conpany | thought Island Creek should have repl aced
t he whol e t hi ng.

Q Aside fromthat, the Governnent's theory here seens

to be that the thing gave way because two beans were

m sal i gned. Be that as it may. You were not concerned

when you were up there and they were dunping all that stuff.

A | didn't think it woul d--what we woul d have done
woul d have give away, no. But | thought about that
bottom part coming out, which | tal ked about, you
know, to M. Young.

Q W is M. Young?

A. Rufus Young, the one that was working with nme. |
told himthat bottom-1 thought it mght shuck out if
it got full.

Q Wien was that? Wen did you talk to himabout that?

A. When he was working, doing the job.
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Q Did you nmention that to anybody el se?
A | nentioned it to--not until after it fell
Q Wio did you nention it to after it fell?

A

The investigators when they cane about a year or
so--1 didn't even know anybody had got killed.

* * * *

Q Had you ever done any of this kind of work before?
A. Yes, | have.
Q Cutting the top off of a bin like this?

A. Yes, | have wel ded up water tanks we have set them
up, | have wel ded [ ugs on, we have picked themup with
a crane and set them and wel ded all kinds of belt
structures, stock piled coal

Q So what you are saying, if you had to do this al

over again if you were the man that wote the work order

you woul d have taken the whole contraption down and put

a new one up there; is that right, rather than cutting it off?

A. Yes, | would. | would have replaced that cone and

all. | asked the inspectors about that water hole. | was
wondering if they m ght have put--there's a settling pond
there. 1 was wondering if it was put in after that bin.

| thought maybe they m ght have put it in after it

and underm ned one of those footers, too. That run in

nmy mind, if mybe one of them gave down and cone over.

Dal e R Cavenaugh, Mechani cal Engi neer, MSHA Coal M ne
Safety Division, Arlington, Virginia, testified as to his
background and experience. He identified exhibit P-1, as
the report of investigation which he and others published
after the conpletion of the accident investigation in
guestion. He stated that upon inspection of the storage bin
parts whi ch had been inventoried and marked by the respondents
personnel, it was concluded that the bin colums had been m sali gned,
and the conclusion reached by MSHA in this regard was the
result of the exami nation of these parts (Tr. 166-169). He
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confirmed that all of the bin stub colums were still attached to
the bin sides, and that the cone section was attached to the
insides on all locations that were used to determ ne what caused

the bin to collapse. He also confirned that neasurenments were nade

to support the conclusion that the stub col utms shown i n phot ographic
exhibits G4 and G5 were msaligned, and he described how this

was done (Tr. 170).

M. Cavenaugh stated that there was no doubt that two of the
stub columms were misaligned by eight or eight and a hal f inches,
and he expl ai ned how he made this determ nation, including a
review of the blueprints of the structure supplied by the conpany
who originally designed, manufactured, and installed the bin
sonmetine in 1968, and interviews with representatives of that
conmpany (Tr. 171-172). M. Cavenaugh al so expl ai ned how the m sal i gned
columms affected the bin | oad capacity and wei ght distribution
(Tr. 173-174).

M. Cavenaugh stated that his investigation did consider the
possibility that the bin footings and the conplete failure of the
cone may have contributed to the collapse of the bin, but that these
theories were discounted, and the cone was still attached to the
bin sides on nost of the pieces which were exam ned (Tr. 175-176).
He al so indicated that his engineering cal cul ati ons, which were
based on the misaligned colums, indicated that the structure could
not support a fully loaded bin (Tr. 176). He believed that a
reasonably prudent person woul d have insured that the m saligned
colums were renoved and reattached to the bottom col ums so as
to transfer the weight |load to the support columm, and that the
failure to take this corrective action caused the coll apse of the
structure (Tr. 177).

M. Cavenaugh confirned that MSHA s investigation determ ned
that the crane accident did not affect the stability of the
structure, and he concluded that anyone wi th knowl edge of the
way the bin was supported, and the fact that the colums were
m sal i gned, shoul d have known that "somethi ng was w ong"

(Tr. 179).

On cross-exam nation, M. Cavenaugh confirmed that he is a
trai ned nmechani cal engineer rather than a civil engineer. He
conceded that it was possible that the original installation
of the structure may not have been exactly how it is depicted
in the blueprints which he examined (Tr. 187). He confirned
that his investigation did not disclose that any alterations were
made to the structure after it was constructed (Tr. 188). He
expl ai ned the function of the bin bolt holes as foll ows
(Tr. 188-191):
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A. There were bolts going through the colum

t hrough the bin side pieces that would align those
segnents during construction so welding could

be done. The bolts were through those hol es and

t hrough the colum when it was built and the

way the one in VP-2 is built also, which there is
a picture of it.

Q What did you take the purpose of those bolt hol es?
A | felt that they were to help support the bin in
pl ace while the welding was to be done and also to
keep the columm close to the side of the bin to help
facilitate wel di ng.

Q Did you inspect for bolt holes or, |I guess they
could be rivet holes as well, underneath or in the
area of the four stub colums other than the two

t hat you deci ded were nisaligned?

A. Yes, we did.

Q What did you find in regard to those hol es?

A. They were aligned. They were aligned with the stub
colum as in the top picture.

Q Wuld bolting the bin to the main support columm be
the only way of securing the bin to the main support colum?

A. | am not sure what you nean.

Q Could the bin be welded to the main support col um
as well as bolted?

MR, FITCH Point of clarification. H s testinony was it
was wel ded after the bolts were put in.

THE W TNESS: The wel d was hol ding the bin, not the
bolts. O course, the bolts would help it. They are
not near strong enough to hold that bin up

BY MR TALTY:

Q It was primarily the wel d?
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A. Right.

Q Wuuld it be possible that when the structure was
originally erected that there was a slight m salignnent
at that tine such that the bolt holes in the bin did
not line up with the bolt holes in the main support

colum so that they were not used, that they were sinmply

a weld put in but no bolt?

A. 1 | ooked at the support colum in all six. Unless
that columm was cut where it had originally been cut,
in other words, the cut was in an identical place,
there was no other cut welds on either piece, the
stub columm or the main support colum. So, if that had
happened, then they had cut the stub columm off in the
exact place that it had been cut before.

Q | amnot sure |I follow your answer. It may have been
a good answer, but it was not clear to nme. Is there any
reason to think that one or nore of those pairs of bolt
hol es were not used, that they were just sinply holes
in the side of the bin?

A. No, we didn't find any evi dence what soever to
support that.

Q | amnot asking if you found evidence to support
that, I amasking you if it could have been. Was it
possi bl e? Do you have evidence that every bolt hole
lined up with a main support colum, physica

evi dence?

A. The last time the bin was painted there was a
support colum lining up those hol es because ri ght
bel ow t hose hol es they needed paint. Sir, that is
about as nuch evidence as | have.

M. Cavenaugh al so indicated that contrary to the
bl ueprints, which indicated continuous support colums fromthe
bottom of the structure to the top, the investigation reveal ed
that the support colums were cut and that plates were inserted
to formthe stub colum (Tr. 192-197). He confirned that
transit checks were made on the footings, and that there was no
way to determ ne how nmany cross braces nay have been
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present prior to the accident. He conceded that to some extent,
the renoval of l|lateral and cross supports would affect the
structural stability and strength of the bin structure, and
that it was possible that there could have been a failure of
aleg (Tr. 201).

In response to further questions, M. Cavenaugh stated that
the | oad capacity of the bin was 300 tons, and he estimated that
at the tine of the collapse there was approxi mately 250 tons of
material in the bin (Tr. 205). He confirmed that his mathematica
cal cul ations took into account the two support beans m saligned
by inches, and a load by 300 tons. He confirned that while
wel ds were made on the two support colums in question, the top
support colums were not directly over the bottomones (Tr. 206).
He concl uded that the structure did not collapse earlier then
it did because it was strong enough to support 250 tons, and
t he work which was done on the wel ds was "good work."

However, he believed that the material breaking |oose inside the
cone initiated the collapse (Tr. 207, 209). In his opinion, the
bin was close to coll apse when one of the victins began bangi ng on
the cone with a sl edge-hamrer to free the clogged materials, and
that the falling material "probably" initiated the collapse

(Tr. 210).

M. Cavenaugh stated that in his opinion, even if the bin
structure had not collapsed, it was still not maintained in good
repair in conpliance with mandatory safety standard section 77.200
(Tr. 216-217).

Respondent' s Testi nony and Evi dence

Joseph B. Necessary, testified that he is 61 years of age,
and he confirnmed that he has been in mne construction work,
i ncluding work as a welder, for approximtely 45 years. He
testified as to his experience and background, including the
operation of his own mne construction business (Tr. 241-245).

M. Necessary stated that since August 1982, he has been
enpl oyed for approxi mately four weeks, and that since that
time he has done odd jobs such as "carpenter work, pouring
concrete" (Tr. 245). He described his present financial
condition as "Low. Fromone day to the next," and he
i ndicated that his financial obligations include nortgage
and car paynments, and utility costs. He al so indicated that
he has had to rely on his son for financial assistance
(Tr. 246).

M. Necessary confirned that he was in charge of the
dismantling of the top of the bin in question, as well as
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the repairs that were nade to that structure. He described how
the work was perforned and how the old bin was cut off and
renoved, and how it was replaced after the welding work was
conpleted (Tr. 247-253). He al so described the procedures

used to cut the old bin portion away fromthe structure
including the cutting of the stub colums in question

(Tr. 254-258).

M. Necessary described that the |oading of refuse into the
bin began after the interior welds were conpl eted, but before the
out si de work had been conpleted (Tr. 261). He confirmed that M.
Young and M. Stewart did the work connected with the wel ding of
the stub colums, and he confirmed that he was called up to | ook
at the work, and that he was inforned of the fact that one of
the colums was "out of line" for a distance of two inches, and
that he confirnmed this by nmeasuring it with a tape (Tr. 262-263).
He denied that any of the stub colums were m saligned by eight
i nches or nore (Tr. 265).

M. Necessary testified that he observed water around the
bin structure footers at the No. 5 and 6 colums next to the
catwal k (Tr. 269). He conceded that the newy repaired bin my
have been "out of round” when it was reinstalled, and that it
was "drawn in" to correct this problem and he indicated that
the new bin was of the correct size (Tr. 271).

M. Necessary expressed an opinion that the coll apse of the
structure in question was caused by the "bridging of material,h"
which entailed the filling of the bottomof the bin cone with
"filter cake" material, and he explained his theory as to what
may have caused the coll apse of the structure (Tr. 271-275).

On cross-exam nation, M. Necessary confirmed that upon
exam nation of the repair work, he observed only one col um
whi ch had been wel ded on two inches off center (Tr. 278).
VWhen asked about the bolt hol es which are present under
the colums depicted in MSHA's report at |ocation C4,

M. Necessary stated that he could not recal
observing any bolt holes at the time the work was
performed (Tr. 282). He confirmed that at no tinme did he
ever viewthe bin after it coll apsed, and that he has
never spoken wi th anyone who worked around the bin when
it collapsed (Tr. 284).

M. Necessary stated that at the time the repair work was
performed, he | ooked at the bin and found that five of the stub
colums were aligned properly, but that one was m saligned by
two inches (Tr. 288-289). He could not recal
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di scussing the matter with M. Young or M. Stewart, and he

i ndi cated that he did not consider it "that nuch of a hazard"
(Tr. 293). He also did not dispute M. Cavenaugh's testinony
that the holes in the colums were used to align them but he
i ndi cated that he had no know edge of any such hol es and has
never heard of them being used for that purpose (Tr. 295-296).

I nspect or Cavenaugh was recalled for additional testinony,
and he indicated that "inpact |oads" caused by a "pyram di ng"
and sudden falling offilter cake materials in a bin cone are
conmon occurrences. He pointed out that the bins are specifically
designed to wi thstand such | oads, and he concluded that there
has to be sonething wong with a structure of this kind to all ow
it to collapse (Tr. 315). He reiterated that it was his opinion that
the coll apse of the bin in question was caused by the m saligned
stub columms, and that his opinion that the colums were m saligned
by as much as eight inches was based on his exam nation of the
physi cal evidence which remained after the collapse, and
the fact that two placenent holes were off center (Tr. 315-316).

Procedural Mbdtion

At the conclusion of the petitioner's case, respondent's
counsel nmade a notion to dismss the proposal for assessnent
of civil penalty filed against M. Necessary on the ground that
petitioner presented no evidence to support its assertion that
he had any know edge that two bin colums were m saligned by
ei ght inches. Conceding that the evidence presented by petitioner
may establish that M. Necessary was aware of the fact that one
col um was misaligned by two i nches, and concedi ng further that
petitioner's evidence and testi nony may support a concl usion
that the bin was not in good repair, and therefore in violation
of section 77.200, respondent's counsel asserted that there is
no evidence to support a "know ng" violation agai nst M.
Necessary (Tr. 227-228).

Petitioner's counsel argued in opposition to the notion to
dismss, and in support of his case asserted that the evidence
presented by the testinony of the two welders and M. Cavenaugh
show wi t hout a doubt that two of the columms were m saligned,
that this caused the structure to coll apse, and that as the
on-site foreman, M. Necessary should have known that the
structure was unsound (Tr. 227-239).

After further consideration of the oral argunments in support
of and in opposition to the notion to disnmiss, it was denied (Tr. 240).
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

The interpretation and application of the term "know ngly"
as used in the Act has been the subject of litigation before
this Comm ssion. MSHA v. Everett Propst and Robert Stemple, 3
FMSHRC 304 (1981). In MSHA v. Kenny Richardson, 1 FMSHRC 874
(July 1979; ALJ Mchels), 3 FMSHRC 8 (January 1981), the
Conmi ssion held that the term "know ngly" means "know ng or
havi ng reason to know," and it rejected the assertion that
the termrequires a show ng of actual know edge and wi Il full ness
to violate a mandatory standard. In this regard, the Conm ssion
adopted the following test as set forth in U S. v. Sweet Briar
Inc., 92 F.Supp. 777 (D.S.C. 1950):

"[Klnowi ngly,' as used in the Act, does not have any
meani ng of bad faith or evil purpose or crimnal intent.
Its meaning is rather that used in contract |aw, where
it means knowi ng or having reason to know. A person
has reason to know when he has such information as
woul d | ead a person exercising reasonable care to
acqui re know edge of the fact in question or to
infer its existence.

In Ri chardson, the Conmi ssion held that its interpretation
of the term "know ngly" was consistent with both the statutory
| anguage and the renedial intent of the Act, and it expressly
stated that "if a person in a position to protect enployee safety
and health fails to act on the basis of information that gives him
know edge or reason to know of the existence of a violative
condition, he has acted knowi ngly and in a nanner contrary to the
renedi al nature of the statute.” On appeal to the Sixth Crcuit,
the Court affirmed the Conm ssion's decision, Richardson v.
Secretary of Labor, FMSHRC, 689 F.2d 623 (6th Cir.1982), cert
denied, 77 L.Ed.2d (1983).

In MSHA v. Roy denn, 6 FMBHRC 1583 (July 1984), the
Conmi ssion applied its holding in the Ri chardson case to a
factual situation where the violation of a mandatory standard
did not exist at the tinme of the alleged failure of the
corporate agent to act. The Conm ssion stated as follows at 6
FMSHRC 1586:

* * * we hold that a corporate agent in a
position to protect enployee safety and health
has acted "knowi ngly" in violation of section
110(c) when, based upon facts available to
him he either knew or had reason to know t hat
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a violative condition or conduct would occur
but he failed to take appropriate preventive
steps. To knowingly ignore that work will be
performed in violation of an applicabl e standard
woul d be to reward a see-no-evil approach to nine
safety, contrary to the structures of the Mne Act.

G ven the paraneters of the Conm ssion's application of the
term"knowi ngly" in the Ri chardson case, and the refinenent of that
termin the Genn case, the question presented is whether, given
the facts presented in this case, M. Necessary "knew or had
reason to know' of the violative conditions, but failed to act.

In this regard, the comm ssion observed as follows in its denn
deci sion, at 6 FMSHRC 1587:

* * * the Comm ssion held in Kenny Richardson that a
supervisor's blind acqui escence in unsafe working
conditions would not be tolerated. Onsite supervisors
were put on notice by our decision that they could
not close their eyes to violations, and then assert

| ack of responsibility for those viol ati ons because
of self-induced ignorance. Qur decision here today

is buttressed by the sane concerns and principles.

Al t hough the respondent in this case conceded that MSHA s
evi dence establishes that the existence of one or nore m saligned
support colums may support a conclusion that the bin structure
was not in good repair as required by the cited mandatory section
77.200, it nonetheless attenpted to establish that other
ci rcunst ances may have caused the col |l apse of the structure.
Respondent's testinony is that the existence of standing water at
the base of the structure at the footings, and the possible |ack
of enough cross-braces at the base of the structure may have
preci pitated the coll apse. However, upon review of the testinony,
I conclude that respondent's assertions in this regard fai
to rise above unsupported opinions and specul ations. On the
ot her hand, M. Cavenaugh testified that he considered these
factors in his analysis and determ nati on of what caused the
col | apse, and discounted them | accept M. Cavenaugh's
expl anations as credible, and I conclude and find that respondent
has not established that the standing water or any m ssing braces
caused the structure to collapse, or otherw se contributed to
that incident.

During the hearing, the respondent raised the inference that
the structure may have been damaged when it was struck by a crane
while lifting the bin fromthe top of the structure. However
the testi nony establishes that it was the respondent’'s crane, and
t hat exam nation of the bin structure at the tinme of that event
did not detect any damage. Accordingly, respondent's assertion is
totally unsupported, and it is rejected.
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Al t hough M. Necessary was of the opinion that the collapse of
the structure was caused by material "bridging" in the cone portion
of the bin, and then suddenly being | oosened, M. Cavenaugh
di scounted this theory and testified that such "bridging" is not
an unusual occurrence and that a properly constructed bin shoul d
wi t hstand such sudden rel eases of materials.

Finally, the respondent argued that because of the conplete
col | apse and massive accunul ation of bits and pieces of the structure
after it collapsed, it is inpossible to reconstruct the incident
with any degree of certainty. In this regard, | take note of the
fact that the respondent failed to call any engi neering or
construction experts to support its conclusions in this regard.

On the other hand, MSHA presented the testinony of M. Cavenaugh
a nmechani cal engi neer who participated in the post-accident

i nvestigation, and who was in |arge neasure responsible for

aut horing the August 24, 1982, report which is part of the record
in this case (exhibit P-1). Further, the record establishes

that after the collapse of the structure, all of the renaining
parts were secured, inventoried, and | abl eed by the m ne operator
and MSHA' s reconstruction of the event, including its concl usions
as to what caused the coll apse of the structure, was nade after
careful anaylsis and evaluation of all of this material. Accordingly,
after careful review of M. Cavenaugh's testinony, | conclude

and find that the petitioner has established by a preponderance of
all of the credible evidence adduced in this case that the

proxi mate cause of the collapse of the structure was the fact

that two of the stub support columms were not aligned with the
mai n support colums, and that this msalighnment affected the
structural integrity of the bin structure in that it reduced

its load supporting capability.

The thrust of petitioner's case is that MSHA' s investigation
of the accident established that two of the bin support stub col ums
whi ch were repl aced after the wel ding work conpl eted by the wel ders
under M. Necessary's direct supervision were msaligned and were
not welded in place directly over the structure's main support
columms. Petitioner asserts that MSHA s post-acci dent
i nvestigation established that the two stub colums in question
were out of line by as nuch as eight inches, and because of this,
the bin structure was structurally unsound, and the m salignment
ultimately caused the structure to coll apse

During the hearing, petitioner's counsel pointed out
that M. Necessary was in a position where he should have
known that at |least two of the stub colums were nisaligned,
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that one of the welders gave himan opportunity to observe it
closely, and that M. Necessary clearly remenbered that at | east
one of the support columms was msaligned by at |east two inches,
and that he personally made the measurenment that confirmed this
fact (Tr. 322).

M. Necessary admitted that after the construction work was
conpleted on the bin, it may have been "out of round” when it was
rewel ded to the bin structure, and that this necessitated that
it be "drawn in" by the welders. It seens obvious to ne that
at this point in time, M. Necessary should have been
aware of the fact that the newy constructed and installed bin
did not exactly fit in place when the wel ders comenced their
work of reattaching it. Further, M. Necessary admitted that
when he exani ned the work done by the wel ders, he recogni zed the
fact that at |east one of the stub colums had been welded in
pl ace two inches off center, and he conceded that the stub
support colum which he observed was m saligned by at | east
two inches. Although he testified that he did not consider
this msalignment to pose "that nuch of a hazard,"” this
candi d adm ssion on his part supports a conclusion that he at
| east recogni zed that the misalignnment did in fact pose a hazard

VWiile there is a dispute in the testinony on the question of
whet her or not two stub colums were nisaligned by as nmuch as eight
i nches, | cannot conclude that this detracts fromthe fact that
the testinony of at |east four witnesses who were either directly
i nvol ved in the construction of the bin, or participated in the
post accident investigation, establishes that one or nore
support stub columms were m saligned.

I conclude and find that the petitioner has established
t hrough the credible testinmony of M. Cavenaugh, that any
m sal i gnment in the support colums affected the structural
integrity of the bin structure, thereby causing, or significantly
contributing to, its collapse. Under the circunstances, | concl ude
and find that the petitioner has established by a preponderance
of the evidence adduced in this case, that the bin structure in
guesti on was not naintained in good repair to prevent accidents
and injuries, and that this constitutes a violation of section 77.200.

Wth regard to the evidence establishing M. Necessary's
accountability for the violation, M. Young, one of the welders
who hel ped do the work, admtted that while he was wel ding the
outside of the bin at a tinme when material was being dunped into
it, he observed one colum which was m saligned by at



~2597

| east two inches, and that it was not lined up with the support
colum. M. Young confirmed the accuracy of a prior statenent
he made to an MSHA investigator where he confirned that the

m sal i gned stub col um was di scussed with M. Necessary, and
that M. Necessary inspected the work.

M. Stewart, the second wel der who was working with M.
Young, also confirmed that two or three days after the bin was
in place on the structure, and while material was "being run"
into the bin, he observed one stub columm mnisaligned by two
i nches, and he indicated that it was not directly over the
conpani on support colum. Further, when asked about the nunber
four and five colums which petitioner clains were nisaligned
by 8 inches, M. Stewart responded that while "they didn't |ine
up," he disputed the fact that they were m saligned by 8 inches,
and his recollection was that only one col umm was m sal i gned.

He al so stated that he was sure that M. Necessary saw the one

m sal i gned col um whil e he was on an outside scaffold instructing
himand M. Young as to howto weld sonme plates to fill gaps
under the col um.

The evidence adduced in this case establishes that M.
Necessary was an experienced wel der and construction man
He al luded to 45 years of experience in the business, including
the operation of his own construction conpany. Gven this
background, | believe one can reasonably conclude that he
knew or shoul d have known that the msaligned stub support
columm in question posed a serious potential safety problem
whi ch he shoul d have addressed i nmedi ately by ordering
his welding crew to nake the necessary corrections.

I conclude that the facts presented in this case establish
that M. Necessary was aware of the fact that one, and possibly two,
support stub columms had been wel ded in place in a nisaligned
position, and not directly above the remaining support colum or
columms. Further, in view of the fact that M. Necessary was
supervising the work, the fact that the condition was called to
his attention by at |east one of the welders, and the fact that he
readily admtted he knew that at |east one of the colums was
m sal i gned, | conclude that he knew, or with the exercise of
reasonabl e diligence, should have known of the hazardous
condition presented by the m salignnent of the stub col umms
in question. Gven these facts, | further conclude and
find that M. Necessary shoul d have taken the necessary
corrective action to insure that the stub colums were
properly aligned, and that his failure to do so constituted a
knowi ng violation of the cited nandatory safety standard in issue
in this case
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Cvil Penalty Assessnent

Al t hough given anple time to file post-hearing briefs, or
proposed findi ngs and conclusions, the parties declined to do
so. However, | have considered the oral argunments nade by
counsel during the course of the hearing in this matter. Wth
regard to the six statutory civil penalty criteria found
in section 110(i) of the Act, petitioner's counsel agreed that
the factors of gravity, negligence, and the respondent’'s
financial ability to pay a civil penalty for the violation in
guestion are relevant, but that the factors concerning any
history of prior violations, size of operation, and good faith
abat ement do not |end thenselves for application in this case
(Tr. 320-321).

Negl i gence

I find no circunstances presented in this case which may
mtigate M. Necessary's negligence with respect to the violation
The evi dence establishes that he knew or shoul d have known of
the conditions constituting a violation of section 77.200, and
that this constitutes a high degree of negligence on his part.

Gavity

The col |l apse of the bin structure resulted in the death of
three miners, and | conclude that the violation was extrenely
seri ous.

Respondent's Ability to Pay a Gvil Penalty

As previously noted, respondent's enployer paid a civil
penalty in the anount of $9,000, for a violation of section
77.200, and the mine operator paid a civil penalty assessnent
in the amount of $240.

M. Necessary's unrebutted testinony is that since August
1982, he has been enpl oyed for about four weeks, and he all uded
to certain financial obligations which he has, including nortgage
and utility paynments. He also indicated that he has had to rely
on his son for financial assistance.

Petitioner has asked for a civil penalty assessnent in the
amount of $1,000, and its counsel suggested that if this amount
were assessed by nme for the violation, the respondent could possibly
wor k out a payment schedule with MSHA for the paynent of the
penalty (Tr. 321).
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Al t hough on the facts of this case, a substantial civil
penalty assessnment would otherwi se be in order, | take note of
the fact that M. Necessary is 61 years of age, has no steady
enpl oynment, and has financial obligations which he nust neet.
Further, given the passage of time since the violation occurred,
the fact that M. Necessary and others may have been the subject
of possible crimnal proceedings, and the fact that he has
obviously incurred | egal expenses in connection with these matters,
I am not convinced that a substantial civil penalty is warranted.
Accordingly, | conclude that a civil. penalty in the anmount
of $500 is appropriate in this case.

CORDER

Respondent Joseph B. Necessary IS ORDERED to pay a civi
penalty in the anount of $500, for the violation which has been
affirmed in this case, and paynent is to be nmade to the
petitioner within thirty (30) days of the date of this decision
and order.

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



